
 

      CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 

    R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                                1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 

                Monday, September 18th, 2023 at 6:00 PM   
 

                  Agenda   
 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3. Approval of Minutes  

 a. September 5th, 2023 Council minutes.  

 

4. Citizen Comments 

5. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations  

a. 1st Reading of 2023-19 Approving The Execution And Delivery Of A Development Agreement 

Between The County And Gaston Springs LLC Regarding The Gaston Farms Road Project; And 

Other Related Matters. 

6. Administrator’s Report   

7. Boards and Commissions 

 a. Appointment to the Construction Board of Appeals- Chairman Branham.  

 

8. Executive Session 

a.  Economic Development Matter- Project 2285. 

 b.  Economic Development Matter- Project 2356. 

c.   Discuss personnel matters regarding Administration. 

 

9. Council Actions Following Executive Session 

 a. Action taken regarding Economic Development Matter- Project 2285. 

 b. Action taken regarding Economic Development Matter- Project 2356. 

 c. Action taken regarding personnel matters in Administration.   

10. Council Comments 

11. Adjourn 



 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, 
the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted 
on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

    

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

                                                                 Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes. 
 
                                                             Public Hearings: 

•  Each speaker will be limited to three minutes. 
 

                                                              When introduced: 

•   Approach the podium, state your name and address. 

•   Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed. 

•   Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council. 

•   Do not approach the Council table unless directed. 
 

                                                             Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

•  Use profanity 

•  Stray from the subject 

•  Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council 

 



Chester County Council Agenda September 5th, 2023                                                  1 
 

 

   CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 

   Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                          1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 

            Tuesday, September 5th, 2023 at 6:00 PM   
 

           Minutes   
 

Present: Chairman Joe Branham, Vice Chairman Pete Wilson, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman 

Erin Mosley, Councilman John Agee, Councilman William Killian, County Administrator Brian Hester, 

County Attorney Joanie Winters and Clerk to Council Karen Lee.  Absent: Councilman Corey Guy with 

prior notification.  

 

1. Call to Order- Chairman Branham called the meeting to order. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison; Chairman Branham gave  

             the invocation. 

 

3. Approval of Minutes  

            a. August 21st, 2023 Council minutes.  

 Councilwoman Mosley motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Unanimous vote.  

 

4. Citizen Comments 
 Bonnie Vicari, 143 York St, Chester addressed Council thanking them for the recent hire of the  

             new Recreation Director and was impressed in the leadership of keeping the budget.  

 

 Fran Sudol Hutchins, 3236 Fishing Creek Church Rd, Chester addressed Council regarding being 

 opposed to the rezoning of both Gaston Springs properties. 

 

 Benji Leyman, 8720 Red Oak Blvd., Charlotte, NC addressed Council regarding being in favor of  

 rezoning both Gaston Springs properties. 

 

 Allen Dickard, 10601 Agnes Douglas Rd, Fort Mill Chester addressed Council regarding being  

 opposed to the rezoning of both Gaston Springs properties. 

 

 Donnann Espitia, Millen Rd, Chester addressed Council regarding being opposed to the rezoning  

             of both Gaston Springs properties. 

  

 Shawn Saras, 2738 Lyle Rd, Chester addressed Council regarding being opposed to the rezoning  

             of both Gaston Springs properties. 

 

 

5. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations  

            a. 2023-16 A Resolution To Authorize The County Of Chester, By Chester County Council,  

             To Sell Certain Equipment And Vehicles Of The Sheriff’s Office And Public Works Identified  

             Herein Upon Such Terms And Conditions As Described. Councilman Agee motioned to  

             approve, second by Vice Chairman Pete Wilson. Unanimous vote. 

   



Chester County Council Agenda September 5th, 2023                                                  2 
 

            b. 2023-18 A Resolution to Amend The County Administrator Organizational Chart To  

Add The Position Known As Project Manager. Councilman Agee motioned to discuss, second  

by Councilwoman Mosley. Administrator Hester stated he and County Attorney Winters had 

discussed doing a consent agenda for 5.a thru 5.f.  Councilwoman Mosley withdrew her second, 

Councilman Agee withdrew his motion. Councilman Agee motioned to allow a consent agenda for 

items 5.b. thru 5.f. Unanimous vote. Vice Chairman Wilson motioned to approve items 5.b. thru 

5.f., second by Councilman Vaughn. Unanimous vote.  

            c. 2023-19 A Resolution to Amend The Parks, Recreation, And Tourism Organizational   

             Chart To Add The Position Known As Parks & Recreation Supervisor. 

            d. 2023-20 A Resolution to Amend The Economic Development Organizational Chart To   

             Remove The Position Known As Conference Center Coordinator. 

             e. 2023-21 A Resolution to Amend The Public Works Organizational Chart To Remove Two  

             Positions Known As Maintenance Employees. 

f. 2023-22 A Resolution to Amend The Parks, Recreation, And Tourism Organizational 

Chart To Add The Position Known As Conference Center Coordinator And Two Positions 

Maintenance Technician. Vice Chairman Wilson motioned to approve items 5.b. thru 5.f., second 

by Councilman Vaughn. Unanimous vote.  

 

   

6. Administrator’s Report  
 Administrator Hester introduced Parks and Recreation/Tourism Director Britt Stoudenmire and  

             HR Director Steven Moise.  

 

7. Old Business  

 a. From: CCTC 

1. Approval of Road and Sign Reimbursement for $ 49,787.71 for road/sign materials to 

the Road Department purchased between March 13, 2023 and August 22, 2023 - Robert 

Hall. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Mosley. Unanimous 

vote.  

 

2.  Recommendation for the annual allotment paving program for 2024. 

Vice Chairman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Mosley. Unanimous 

vote.  

 

3.  Recommendation for the One-Time Money paving program for 2024. 

Vice Chairman Wilson motioned to postpone to the first meeting in October, second by 

Councilwoman Mosley. Unanimous vote.  

 

b.  2nd Reading of CCMA23-09 Gaston Springs LLC/Benji Layman request a portion (20.04 

acres) of Tax Map #114-00-00-059-000 located at Gaston Farm Road and adjacent to I-77 to 

be rezoned from Limited Industrial District (ID-2) to Planned Development District (PD).  

The Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve. Vice Chairman Wilson motioned to approve, 

second by Councilman Killian. Vote 4-2 to approve.  Councilmembers Agee and Mosley opposed.  

 

c. 2nd Reading of CCMA23-10 Gaston Springs LLC/Benji Layman request a portion (150.76 

acres) of Tax Map #114-00-00-015-000 located at Gaston Farm Road and adjacent to I-77 to 

be rezoned from Limited Industrial District (ID-2) to Planned Development District (PD). 

The Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve. Councilman Killian motioned to approve, 

second by Vice Chairman Wilson. Vote 4-2 to approve. Councilmembers Agee and Mosley 

opposed. 

 

 



Chester County Council Agenda September 5th, 2023                                                  3 
 

8. Council Comments 
Councilman Agee invited everyone to Union ARP Church in Richburg for a barbeque in 

remembrance of all who died September 11th. A service would be held at 11 am as well.  

 

9. Adjourn- Councilwoman Mosley motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. 
 Unanimous vote to adjourn.  

 

Time: 7:30pm 

 

K 

Karen Lee 

Clerk to County Council  



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 

APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND 
GASTON SPRINGS LLC REGARDING THE GASTON FARMS 
ROAD PROJECT; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, according to the provisions of the South Carolina Local Government Development 
Agreement Act, codified in South Carolina Code Annotated section 6-31-10, et seq. (collectively, “Act”), 
and Chester County Ordinance No. 2021-12, as amended by Ordinance No. __________(collectively, 
“Development Agreement Ordinance”), the Chester County Council (“County Council”), as the governing 
body of Chester County, South Carolina (“County”) is authorized to enter into development agreements to 
provide for the County’s development; 

WHEREAS, the County adopts and incorporates by reference as if fully stated herein in their entirety 
the County’s findings from the Development Agreement Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the County Planning Director has reviewed the proposed development agreement for the 
referenced project (“Development Agreement”), the substantially final form of which is attached to this 
Ordinance as Exhibit A, and which is incorporate herein by reference as if fully stated herein in its entirety 
and has confirmed to the Development Agreement Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Incorporation of Findings. The County hereby adopts and incorporates the findings 
contained in the “WHEREAS” clauses above. 

Section 2. Development Agreement Requirements. The County finds the Development Agreement 
meets the requirements of the Act and the Development Agreement Ordinance. 

Section 3. Development Agreement Approval. According to the authority provided by the Act and the 
Development Agreement Ordinance, the Development Agreement, attached as Exhibit A, which is now 
before this meeting, is approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby 
incorporated herein by reference as if such Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. 
The Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be, and they are hereby 
authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver the Development Agreement in 
the name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the Development Agreement to be delivered 
to the developer. The Development Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting 
and hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the 
County thereunder, or otherwise constitute a major or moderate modification as provided in the form of the 
Development Agreement, and which shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the 
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of 
all changes therein from the form of Development Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 4. Additional Provisions. 

(a) The Chairman and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to execute, 
deliver, and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by the County to carry out, 
give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized by this Ordinance; 

(b) This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South 
Carolina; 

(c) This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following third reading by the 
County Council; 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section, phrase, or 

provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unenforceable, that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and 
provisions hereunder; and 

(e) All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the conflict, 
hereby repealed. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOW] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:       
Chairman, County Council 

[SEAL] 
Attest: 

       
Clerk to County Council 

First Reading:  September 18, 2023 
Public Hearing:  October 2, 2023 
Second Reading: October 2, 2023 
Public Hearing:  October 16, 2023 
Third Reading:  October 16, 2023 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
EXHIBIT A 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (GASTON FARMS ROAD PROJECT) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

 




	9-18-2023 Agenda
	9-5-2023  Minutes
	2023-19  Approving Ordinance - Chester-Gaston Farms Road (draft) (KKL2023.09.14)v.3kl
	CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

	Jon Helms Construction Board of Appeals_Redacted



